ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE COMMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 1, 2007
4:07 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Donny O son, Chair

Senator Al bert Kookesh, Vice Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas

Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Thonmas WAgoner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
SENATE BILL NO 16
"An Act extending the termnation date for the Regulatory
Conmi ssion of Alaska; and providing for an effective date."
MOVED CSSB 16( CRA) OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 16
SHORT TITLE: EXTEND REGULATORY COWM SSI ON OF ALASKA
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) THERRI AULT

01/ 16/ 07 (S PREFI LE RELEASED 1/5/07

01/ 16/ 07 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (S) CRA, STA, FIN

02/ 15/ 07 (9 CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 15/ 07 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 15/ 07 (S) M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 20/ 07 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 20/ 07 (S -- Meeting Cancel ed --

03/ 01/ 07 (S CRA AT 4:00 PM BELTZ 211

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT, Sponsor

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the committee substitute to SB 16.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- March 1, 2007



KATE G ARD, Chair

Regul at ory Conm ssion of Al aska (RCA)

Anchorage, AK 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in favor of the conmttee substitute
to SB 16 and di scussed statutory revisions to the RCA

PAT LUBY, Advocacy Director

AARP- Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in favor of SB 16.

PAT DAVI DSON

Di vision of Legislative Audit

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered audit questions regarding SB 16.

FRANK CORBI N, Ceneral Manager

Nushagak Cooperative

DI l'i ngham Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in favor of SB 16 and agai nst raising
commi ssi oner qualifications too high.

BRAD REEVE, Ceneral Manager

Kot zebue El ectric Association

Presi dent of the Al aska Power Associ ation

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Discussed the relationship of the Kotzebue
El ectric Association with the regul atory comm ssi on.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR DONNY OLSON called the Senate Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Commttee neeting to order at 4:07:06 PM
Senators Thomas, Wagoner, Kookesh, Stevens, and dson were
present at the call to order.

SB  16- EXTEND REGULATORY COVM SSI ON OF ALASKA

CHAI R OLSON announced t he consideration of SB 16.

SENATOR WAGONER noved the comm ttee substitute (CS) of SB 16,

| abel ed, 25-LS0148\E, Kane. Hearing no objections, Version E was
before the commttee.

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT, Al aska State Legislature, said the new
| anguage for SB 16 requests a two-year review of the Regulatory

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 2- March 1, 2007



Comm ssion of Alaska (RCA) by the Division of Legislative Audit.
It would not be a full audit as is done prior to a sunset, but
it would provide a report card as to how the RCA is noving
dockets through the system neeting deadlines, and other aspects
of efficiency. In Section 4, the initial bill suggested an
ei ght -year extension, and there was sone concern that that was
too long, so it was changed to six years. He said the bill
shoul d renove the conmttee’s concerns fromthe | ast neeting.

4:09: 59 PM
SENATOR STEVENS asked about the six-year extension.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said because of the two-year report card, he
want ed the extension to be divisible by two.

4:10: 54 PM
CHAI R OLSON asked about the fiscal note change.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he doubted it would change the fisca
note, because the “audit shop” is already budgeted for ongoing
operations of the |egislature.

KATE G ARD, Chair, Regulatory Conmm ssion of Alaska, said the CS
will provide stability for the RCA and for the state. The two-
year audits are wise and responsible, and it will nmake sure the
RCA keeps on track. She handed out the RCA annual report to the
commttee, which includes the nunber of statutory extensions the
RCA aut horized. They can either be at the request of the parties
or by RCA's authority, which allows a one-tinme 90-day extension.
Parties and the RCA have extended for various reasons, she said.
The information is reported to legislative auditors quarterly.
She said page 75 of the report speaks to comm ssion proceedi ngs.

4:14: 37 PM

M5. G ARD said there are substantive, final decisions—generally
after a rate case or at the very end of the matter; substantive,
non-final decisions, which occur when parties disagree; and
procedural decisions, which the adm nistrative |aw judges nmake
or the RCA affirnms. The report lists the nunber of dockets, she
stated, and it shows what is pending, how many cases cane to the
RCA, how many were cl osed, and how nmany renain.

SENATOR WAGONER asked why there are a high nunber of letter
orders issued in FYO5.

M5. G ARD said letter orders are docunents issued by RCA staff
and are related to the nunber of applications. They can be for

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- March 1, 2007



i nconpl ete applications or other correspondence. The RCA focuses
on adj udi catory decisions and not |etter orders, she said.

4:16:49 PM

M5. G ARD said the report shows appealed cases. Page 54 lists
the appeals, and it is a bit overwhel mi ng because they take up a
nunber of pages. Mst are individual appeals of the Transal aska
Pipeline System (TAPS) owners, who individually appeal RCA
orders on a case by case basis. Sonetines they are appealed to
the Superior Court and then the Supreme Court, she noted.
Quality bank has been appealed since 1986, so those are all
matters that are continuing to go through. For utility matters,
there is a description of what the appeals were about. She can
provide nore information on the appeals. The report shows how
many utilities are certificated to give the conmmrittee an idea of
what the RCA does. It is broken down between those that are
economcally regulated, where the RCA sets the rates, and those
that are exenpt from economc regulation but needing to neet
safety, service area, and other standards. Ms. G ard added that
the report has details on telecommunication conpetitive entry
and markets.

4:19: 45 PM
SENATOR THOVAS asked for an exanple of what the RCA would do if
it wasn't regulating an entity’ s econom cs.

M5. GARD said the RCA my regulate service areas, safety
requi renents, or the overall managenent. For exanple, the RCA
has jurisdiction over Aurora [Energy], but it doesn't regulate
rat e changes.

4:21:20 PM

SENATOR STEVENS asked about the previously discussed topics of
qualifications and salaries of the comm ssioners, adding a chief
of staff, and changing the deadlines for rate cases.

M5. G ARD said she provided a copy of the statutory revisions
that the RCA is recommending to the governor, who wll cone
forward with | egislation. The changes that the RCA proposes are:
increase the regulatory cost-charge limt from seven to nine in
order to fund the PERS liability that the RCA absorbed in 2008;
increase civil penalties from $100 to up to $1,000; adopt a 12-
month tineline for anything that does not have a tineline (as
recommended by the wutilities); [adding] an office of general
counsel —=we’ ve tal ked to you about the relationship that the RCA
has with the Attorney General comng before us and also acting
in adjudication with us”; add an adm nistrative |law section to

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- March 1, 2007



make the RCA distinct from the Ofice of Admnistrative
Hearings; put in a natural gas and oil pipeline section; allow
the RCA access to certain personnel, like an executive
secretary, and; update conm ssioner qualifications and sal ari es.

4:26:42 PM
SENATOR WAGONER said Bill Gates couldn’t becone a conm SSioner
based on the proposed qualifications.

MS. G ARD said he could because he has had executive |evel
experience for a period of five years.

SENATOR WAGONER said the wording uses "and,"” so it mght need to
be reworded.

4:27:56 PM

CHAIR OLSON said his office has had a nunber of calls regarding
the proposed statutory changes, and he asked Senator Therriault
for his opinion on those.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he just received the docunent, and there
are conpanies in the regulatory comunity that have not seen it
and may have suggesti ons.

4:29:23 PM
CHAIR OLSON asked if a utility can opt out of being economcally
regul at ed.

M5. G ARD said any utility can cone to the RCA and seek an
exenption from regulations. They can petition to becone
regul ated or to becone unregul ated--like the cooperatives. There
may currently be an application from Al aska Wste to be
deregul ated for commercial activities. Then the public advocate
weighs in, and then there will be a hearing and a decision on
the matter. But no pipeline carrier has that option, she said.

4:31:22 PM

CHAI R OLSON asked, “If an entity has an adverse ruling by your
conmm ssion, can they opt out of that then?”

M5. G ARD said no one can opt out, but anyone can petition. The
RCA may say no, but then they wll I|ikely conme to the
| egi sl ature.

CHAI R OLSON asked how many entities have been exenpt ed.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- March 1, 2007



M5. G ARD said several cooperatives have had elections to cone
out from underneath regulation, including the utility in Kodi ak.
Al'l cooperative electric utilities have the option of having
their nmenbers vote themout fromregul ation.

4:33: 06 PM

PAT LUBY, Advocacy Director, AARP-Al aska, encouraged the passage
of SB 16 to extend the RCA which has been a referee in
t el ecommuni cation wars and has oversight on all utility issues.
The RCA is the consunmer watchdog and the only thing standing
between the custonmers and all the utility conpanies. It is there
to review every rate case to determne if it is justified or
excessive. This nmorning, M. Luby heard an assistant attorney
general and an RCA attorney argue a water case on behalf of
Anchorage custoners. Al Al askan famlies need the RCA he said.

4:34:29 PM

PAT DAVIDSON, Division of Legislative Audit, said the CS is
clear, and the two-year audit is not conplex. It puts the onus
on the comm ssion to do the work and she would sinply verify it.
In response to Chair O son’s question about the fiscal note, she
said about 60 percent of her workload is statutorily driven and
40 percent cones from audit requests approved by conmittee. SB
16 will only nove the RCA audit ahead of the requested audits.
The audit wll just go in with the rest of her work and
typically won't have a fiscal note with it.

CHAI R OLSON said, “So no addition during finance conmttee?”

M5. DAVI DSON said, “If you like the level of audit services that
you're getting right now, then we’'ll just be comng in with a
mai nt enance budget.”

4:37:10 PM

FRANK CORBI N, GCeneral Manager, Nushagak Cooperative, D llingham
said the cooperative has electric, telephone, cable TV and
internet, and it is exenpt fromthe RCA [rate] regulations, but
it still files reports and is subject to the RCA. He expressed
support for the bill. As a Dbusiness person, he feels
qualifications should be mniml, because raising the bar wll
exclude people. He fears creating an elite social club that

nobody can get into. Steeper qualifications mght affect
| egi slative vigilance. He supports an increase in salary, which
will attract higher-quality applicants. He said, “lI do agree

with the concept of having a fornmer wutility executive being
avai l abl e for comm ssion positions in light of the nunber of ex-
conmi ssi oners that have gone to work in the utility industry.”

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- March 1, 2007



4:40: 43 PM

MR. CORBIN said conpetition is the buzz word everywhere, and it
is nothing new in a capitalist country. A social construct of a
safety net has devel oped out of conpetition. “The econom c fact
is that there is sone point upon which conpetition does not
address.., individuals within our society have agreed to this
point that that’'s a social responsibility that different
government entities take upon thenselves to address those areas
where conpetition is not the answer.” That tipping point is
evident even in the cooperatives that have exenpted out from
under regulation, he said. It is a financial burden and those
cooperatives have decided that there is no return on their
i nvestnments. He continued, “Depending on which side of the net
you're on, it’s either a ceiling or a floor. It exists. It’s
real and it's economic, and | ask for consideration of that.” He
noted that the Nushagak cooperative was involved in protesting
t he Yukon-Crowl ey nerger, and he observed testinmony of the state
attorney general who said the nonopoly in the region was a good
thing for the state because it was nore efficient.

4:43: 53 PM

MR CORBIN said, “W were assured that there was still the
senbl ance of conpetition because, for exanple, Delta Wstern
could lease space from Crowey in Bethel, and therefore there
would be two fuel resellers in Bethel.” Wwen a Delta
representative was questioned about that business arrangenent,
he said it didn't matter how rmuch Crowl ey charged him because
the profits in Bethel were so deep. He said that is a serious
i ssue for the bush.

CHAIR OLSON asked if he wants the RCA to |ook at fuel retailers
for regulation, as it was wunder the Alaska Public Uilities
Comm ssi on (APUC) .

MR. CORBIN said, "W would like sone relief out there in sone
form and we have asked everywhere." He has been told that the
RCA is the answer, but when he gets there he is told it is not.

4:45: 35 PM

BRAD REEVE, General Manager, Kotzebue Electric Association and
President of the Alaska Power Association, said his utility
deregul ated economically from the RCA in 1993. Hs role in the
trade association puts himin contact with the RCA. Under Chair
G ard things are inproving, and he said his concerns have been
listened to. He said he is seeing nore transparency and things
have been nore pleasant. Wien his association decided to

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -7- March 1, 2007



deregulate in 1993, it was very expensive--all hearings were in
Anchorage--and the nenbers felt they had no voice. The
rel ationship has greatly inproved over the past few years, he
concl uded.

CHAIR OLSON asked about the financial burden on snal
cooperati ves.

4. 48: 27 PM

MR. REEVE said when his association was regulated a rate filing
could run from $40,000 to $80,000, and nenbers were excluded
from any input. The nenbers voted to deregulate, and it works
well. There are still safety regulations, and the RCA is
i nvol ved in power cost equalization, he explained.

CHAI R OLSON asked if he has seen the proposed statutory changes.
MR. REEVE said his attorney said they are acceptabl e.
SENATOR THOVAS asked how t he association raises its rates.

4:50: 21 PM

MR. REEVE said two public hearings are held, and the board of
directors acts as an adjudicator. M. Reeve presents a case to
the board and allows nenbers to attend. “Then | have to build a
case along with the auditor and other professional staff.to make
t he case that we need an increase.”

SENATOR THERRI AULT said the CS is reasonable for the extension
and he noted that he has been told by the power conpanies that
the RCA is so nuch better than years ago, and that 1is
gratifying. Cearly the legislature doesn't want to take on the
duties of the RCA, he said, and the 6-year extension and 2-year
report card is reasonable. The proposed changes can be di scussed
with the adm nistration, and perhaps an independent bill can be
drafted to put these ideas on the table.

SENATOR WAGONER moved the CS for SB 16, |abeled 25-LS0148\E
from commttee with individual recomendations and acconpanyi ng
fiscal notes. Hearing no objections, CSSB 16(CRA) noved out of
conmittee.

The conmittee was adjourned at 4:53:13 PM

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 8- March 1, 2007



